
Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for March 16, 2022 - Pg.1 

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 16, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  

NOTICE 
Coronavirus COVID-19 

In response to the current proclaimed State of Emergency, indoor masking requirements, and recommended 
measures to promote social distancing imposed by State and local officials, the Town of Discovery Bay Community 
Services District Board of Directors will take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of AB 361, 
including, ensuring that the Directors and meeting attendees may continue to have the option to access and 
participate in this public meeting by teleconference to avoid imminent risks to the health or safety of the Directors 
and meeting attendees. 

To accommodate the public during this period of time, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District 
Board of Directors has arranged for members of the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
in person. 

TO ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting will be held at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay 
Boulevard.   

TO ATTEND BY WEBINAR:  
Please register for Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors at: (Copy and paste into your browser 
the registration URL.  You will then be directed to download the webinar to your device and register with LogMeIn, 
Inc.) 

Registration URL: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7502853364748197900 
Webinar ID# 779-605-403 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the 
webinar by computer or by phone. 

For listen-only mode dial: (631) 992-3221 ID# 914-486-381 

Download Agenda Packet and Materials at www.todb.ca.gov 

REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M.  
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m.
2. Roll Call.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction
which is not on the Agenda. The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak will have 3 minutes to make their comment.
There will be no dialog between the Board and the commenter as the law strictly limits the ability of Board
members to discuss matters not on the agenda.  We ask that you refrain from personal attacks during
comment, and that you address all comments to the Board only.  Any clarifying questions from the Board
must go through the President.  Comments from the public do not necessarily reflect the viewpoint of the
Directors.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Kevin Graves • Vice President – Ashley Porter • Director – Bryon Gutow • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7502853364748197900
http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Agenda for March 16, 2022 - Pg.2 

 

 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR  
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of Board of Directors meeting for March 2, 2022. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices. 
3. Approve Resolution 2022-07 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Body of 

the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant to the Brown Act Provisions. 
 
D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS 

1. None. 
 

E. PRESENTATIONS 
1. Veolia – March 2022 Presentation. 

 
F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS  

1. Discussion and Possible Action to Recommend to Caltrans Traffic Control Change(s) to the Intersection 
of Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd.   

2. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Town of Discovery Bay Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 
Ending 2021. 

3. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Community Center Recreational Swim Price Increase.   
4. Discussion and Possible Action to Award the Discovery Bay Blvd. and Egdeview Drive Pipeline 

Replacement Project to the Lowest Responsive Bidder in the Amount of $640,000. 
 
G. MANAGERS REPORTS 
   
H.    GENERAL MANAGERS REPORTS 
   
I.    DIRECTOR’S REPORTS 

1. None. 
 

J.    DIRECTOR’S REGIONAL MEETING REPORTS 
1.  Byron Union School District Meeting - February 24, 2022. 

 
 
K.   CORRESPONDENCE RECIVED 
  
L.    FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S) 
  
M.  OPEN SESSION DISCOLUSRE OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 1.  None. 
 
N.    CLOSED SESSION 
        1.  None. 
 
O.   RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 1.  None. 
         
P.     ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the Next Regular Board of Director’s Meeting, beginning at 7 PM at the Community Center 
located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard. 

 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925) 634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least forty-eight hours prior to the time of the meeting.”  
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the agenda 
packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during normal 
business hours." 



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2022 - Pg.1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday March 2, 2022, 7:00 P.M. 

A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. – By Vice President Porter.
2. Pledge of Allegiance. – Led by Director Gutow.
3. Roll Call. – All present. President Graves and Director Graham appeared telephonically.

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit)
One Public Comment:

• I live on Discovery Bay Blvd. and have two questions. The first is to inquire about the vacant lot on
the corner entrance of Discovery Bay. Is this property being sold for development? Where can I find
out if something is in the works?  I have a feeling it’s not going to be single family homes.  My second
question is regarding the tagging along the wall on Highway 4. Who is responsible for cleaning up this
wall? If it doesn’t get painted over right away, we will have a wall full of tagging.

GM Breitstein provided her business card to the resident to address his concerns. 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Approve DRAFT minutes of Board of Directors meeting for February 16, 2022.
2. Approve Register of District Invoices.
3. Approve Resolution 2022-06 Re-Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Legislative Body of

the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District Pursuant to the Brown Act Provisions.
4. Ratify Resolution 2022-07 of the Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors establishing a District of Office

Planning Ad Hoc Committee to Develop Options for Acquiring or Building a Future District Office.
Director Bryon Gutow made a motion to accept the Consent Calendar as presented. 
Director Callahan second.  
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

D. AREA AGENCIES AND LIAISON REPORTS / PRESENTATIONS
1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report.

Lea Castleberry has retired and Dawn Morrow is Discovery Bay’s new representative for District III.
• Covid-19 update effective March 11th, 2022: State health officials announced that masking

requirements will be lifted at K-12 schools and child care settings. Masks are still recommended but
not mandated. State health officials announced that unvaccinated persons will no longer be required
to be masked indoors in public settings. Masks are still required in high risk settings such as: health
care facilities, nursing homes, congregate care, and public transportation.

• Find County Commission openings and other news in our Supervisor’s Weekly Newsletter. Text the
word “BURGIS” to 22828 to join.

2. Sheriff’s Office Report.
Lieutenant Mark Johnson provided an update on crimes in the Discovery Bay area.

• Thefts of bikes and golf carts from garages left open.
• Approximately 2-3 catalytic converter thefts a month.
• We have really focused on shoplifting from the Sandy Cove Shopping Center. There is a police

car parked behind CVS and Safeway and we let them know when we are back there so they call
us directly. That has been successful, we caught someone today from Brentwood. They were
caught and taken to jail on theft and drug charges.

• Two different warrant arrests from traffic stops.

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

President – Kevin Graves • Vice-President – Ashley Porter • Director –Bryon Gutow • Director – Michael Callahan • Director – Carolyn Graham 

SDLF Platinum-Level of Governance 

     Agenda Item: C-1



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2022 - Pg.2 

• Commercial burglary at La Taqueria Limon in the middle of the night, forced entry through back
door and stole from there.

• One interesting case at the Wells Fargo ATM next to Safeway. $1,000 cash was left in the ATM,
someone found and turned it into them. We were able to find the owner and return money to
them.

Director Graham posed a question regarding young kids driving golf carts in Discovery Bay and what can be done 
about this? Lieutenant Mark Johnson advised that this was a matter for CHP but did provide information that if a 
golf cart is driven on a public road, the driver must have a drivers license; okay if driven on private property. 

3. CHP Report.
None.

4. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report.
Fire Marshal Steve Aubert reported for the month of February there were a total of 74 calls, no major
incidences, 676 service calls, 6 residential structure fires, 2 commercial structure fires, 8 vehicle fires, 2
vegetation fires, and 24 exterior fires.  District also responded to 20 vehicle accidents with 1 additional
requiring rescue, 4 vehicle vs. pedestrian accidents, 4 motorcycle accidents, and 3 bicycle accidents.
Recap of 2021The District received a total of 8,481 calls which is an increase from the previous year by
11%; calendar year of 2021 had a total of 728 calls for service in Discovery Bay alone.

Announcements:  LAFCO Meeting will be held on March 9th at 1:30 pm the LAFCO Commission will take
vote on the final annexation topic for Contra Costa County Fire Protection District.  ECCFPD board
meeting will take place same evening at 6:30 pm.  Wildfire season is fast approaching major wildfires are
being reported in Southern California due to weather and lack of rain, notices will be sent out early April
for May 15th compliance deadline.

E. PRESENTATIONS
1. Capacity Fee and Connection Study.

Presentation from Alison Lechowicz summarizing water and wastewater capacity fee update.  Last study
was performed in 2014 the update is needed as there are new capital improvement projects, facilities
needed to serve growth has been updated, the Town has completed Wastewater Master Plan, and
Denitrification Project for the sewer system now has contractor bids. Water flows and sewer demands
has declined due to conservation and drought conditions as well as corresponding sewer flows that
impacts the capacity used by development into the future based on single family dwelling.

Director Gutow posed a question to Water / Wastewater Manager Aaron Goldsworthy: “How do we get a
wastewater reduction”?  Is sprinkler runoff considered wastewater?
Manager Goldsworthy replied: The reason why you are seeing less water in our wastewater is due to
drought regulations and meters being installed people are being more conscientious and using less water.

Water and sewer include buy-in portion of the fee for existing facilities based on fixed asset list, water and
wastewater enterprises, looked at facilities currently providing service and have capacity to provide
service to new customers into the future.  Second part of the fee included upcoming capital expenditures
allocation of what facilities benefit growth and what facilities benefit existing customers. Main cost of water
facility are well upgrades, filter replacement for treatment plants and water main replacements.
Wastewater main cost to facilities were lift stations, plan 2 upgrades in addition sewer had denitrification
project.  The Town can charge interest in financing costs in connection to new facilities to be built.  The
Town provided debt service estimates.

Existing fees and proposed fees of both water and sewer have slight increases based on capital
improvement plans, updated development projections over the next 20 years for single family dwelling
units.  A survey was performed of comparable agencies of what they charge for typical water and
wastewater capacity fee, Discovery Bay is in the mid-range of other agencies in the area even with the
proposed change the ranking didn’t shift.  Discovery Bay continues to be in the middle of the fees of the
agencies surveyed.  This matter will be brough back to the board on April 20th, 2022 for approval.

F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS
1. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of a Second Amended and Restated Memorandum

of Understanding with Seven other GSAs for Implementation of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the
East Contra Costa Subbasin.

Agenda Item:C-1



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2022 - Pg.3 

• Requesting Board to authorize General Manager to execute and carry out the terms of the Second
Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding for the Implementation of Groundwater
Sustainability Plan along with partner agencies.

President Graves provided acknowledgment of hard work by Interim Assistant General Manager Davies. 

No public comments. 

Motion made by Director Gutow to approve Staff’s recommendation requesting Board to authorize GM to 
execute and carry out the terms of the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum of Understanding for the 
Implementation of Groundwater Sustainability Plan along with partner agencies. 
Second by Director Carolyn Graham. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

2. Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Notice of Completion and Final Payment for the Swimming
Pool Remodel at the Community Center.

Parks/Landscape Manager Bill Engelman provided pool update of the construction project that is now 
complete, no outstanding punch list items, all final inspections are complete, passed, and on budget.  
Recommending Notice of Completion be approved and any remaining payments and retention be remitted to 
Adams Pool Solutions. 

General Manager provided explanation of approval process as requested by Vice President Porter. The 
process depends on the county turnaround and then 35 days from when we receive it from the county to 
release the retention.  

No public comments. 

Motion made by Director Gutow for notice of completion be approved and remit and release funds once 
authorized from county. 
Second by Director Callahan. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

3. 2022 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar.
Parks and Recreation Department produces a calendar of public events taking place at the Community Center
Town Parks.  Staff recommends approval of the 2022 Event Calendar.

Motion made by Director Gutow to approve 2022 Parks and Recreation Public Event Calendar. 
Second by Director Callahan. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

4. Approval of Park and Recreation 2022 Program, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers.

Parks/Landscape Manager Bill Engelman presented events being waived by the General Manager:  
o Boys Scouts of America Troup 514
o Contra Costa Library Program for Kids - Resisting Aggression Defensively
o The Annual Easter Egg Hunt
o The Holiday Parade

Staff is recommending acceptance of the above 2022 Program, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers by the 
General Manager for the total amount of $1,997.50. 

Vice President Porter pointed out that waiving fees is a way The Town is working with the community and 
giving back to community activities.  Director Graham asked, if another well-known group within the community 
service organization requests to use the Community Center at no charge would it be considered?  General 
Manager confirmed that if they want to have their fee waived it would be brought back to the Board at that 
time. 

No public comments. 

Agenda Item: C-1



Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 
Meeting Minutes for March 2, 2022 - Pg.4 

Motion made by President Gutow to approve 2022 Program, Activities, and Event Fee Waivers. 
Second by Director Carolyn Graham. 
Vote:  Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0, ABSTAINED: 0, ABSENT: 0 

G. MANAGER’S REPORT
None.

H. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
• General Manager attended first Chamber Meeting and will plan to schedule a host one at a later

date.  General Manager was also inducted and joined the Lion’s Club of Discovery Bay.
• Special acknowledgement by GM to Park/Rec Supervisor Gallo’s daughter who received her Ph.D.

in Gerontology from USC.

I. DIRECTOR REPORTS
1. Standing Committee Reports.

• Communications Committee Meeting – March 2, 2022.
Report out by Director Callahan. Chamber Mixer and Meet The General Manager Event dates
will be coming to Board in future meeting.

• Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting – March 2, 2022.
Report out by Director Gutow. Raising swim fees marginally, Cornell Park vandalism; staff will
apply non-graffiti pant, Clipper Drive massive refresh reviewing options and will have definitive
numbers to present to Board.

2. Water and Wastewater Committee Meeting – March 2, 2022.
• Report out by VP Porter. Several projects are ongoing and moving forward. Pond and dredge

are complete, piping underneath marina and lights.

3. Other Reportable Items.
• None.

J. DIRECTORS REGIONAL MEETING AND TRAINING REPORTS
1. Agency report from Director Graham for Tri Delta Transit Meeting from February 23, 2022.

• Update from Director Graham Tri Delta is buying combination of diesel and electric buses.  The
General Manager will be retiring and will take the next year to search for replacement.

2. Agency report from President Graves for ECCPD Meeting from February 9, 2022.
No report.

3. Agency report from President Graves for CC Aviation Advisory Committee from February 10, 2022.
No report.

K. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED
None.

L. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM(S)
None.

M. OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
None.

N. CLOSED SESSION
None.

O. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
None.

P. ADJOURNMENT
1. Adjourn to the regular meeting on March 16, 2022, beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community Center

located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.

//ag – 03-10-22 

Agenda Item: C-1



Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

March 16, 2022 

Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  

Agenda Title 

Approve Register of District Invoices. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment. 

Executive Summary 

District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment.  Staff recommends 
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 

Fiscal Impact:  
Amount Requested  $ 946,748.69 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:  Yes   (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #    See listing of invoices.  Category:  Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements  

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

Attachments 

Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD  2021/2022 

AGENDA ITEM: C-2 



          Request for Authorization to Pay Invoices

Anderson Pacific $684,289.75

Veolia Water North America $167,703.94

Herwit Engineering $28,911.60

Luhdorff & Scalmanini $10,010.00

San Joaquin County Office Of Ed $8,298.50

BSK Associates $6,762.75

J.W. Backhoe & Construction, Inc. $5,681.07

Badger Meter $5,558.94

Linwood Supply, Inc. $4,941.01

National Aquatic Services, Inc. $4,009.40

Lechowicz & Tseng Municipal Consultants $2,425.00

Core & Main LP $2,292.45

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. $2,052.00

Brentwood Ace Hardware $1,486.99

Univar Solutions USA Inc. $1,454.78

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. $1,293.58

Karina Dugand $1,174.50

Verizon Wireless $902.32

Water Refund Customer $830.31

Mt Diablo Resource Recovery $825.49

Robert Half $755.47

Kevin Graves $690.00

Carolyn Graham $575.00

Streamline $480.00

ASCAP $393.83

Ashley Porter $345.00

Bryon Gutow $345.00

Michael Callahan $345.00

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc. $302.26

Office Depot $281.21

Cintas $251.26

Gladwell Governmental Services, Inc. $250.00

Concentra $230.00

Geotab USA, Inc. $197.50

UniFirst Corporation $133.10

Cory Cardwell $100.00

Lesley Marable $99.68

Discovery Pest Control $70.00

$946,748.69

For The Meeting On March 16, 2022

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

Fiscal Year 7/21 - 6/22

Agenda Item: C-2



Agenda Item: C-3 

2022-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS OF THE LEGISLATIVE BODY OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District (the “Town”) is committed 
to preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; 
and  

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Town’s legislative body are open and public, as required by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may 
attend, participate, and watch the District’s legislative body conduct their business; and 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 
teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 
with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 
certain conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Town’s Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2021-16 on 
October 20, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative body of the Town to 
conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) of section 54953; and

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 
Board of Directors must make findings that the Board has reconsidered the circumstances of the 
state of emergency that exist in the Town, and that either the state of emergency continues to 
directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person, or State or local officials 
continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing; and   

WHEREAS, the March 4, 2020, Governor proclaimed a State of Emergency continues to exist 
throughout California as a result of the threat of COVID-19; and   

WHEREAS, currently the dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country continues to be more 
transmissible than prior variants of the virus, may cause more severe illness, and that even fully 
vaccinated individuals can spread the virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of 
COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations, therefore, meeting in person would present imminent risks 
to the health or safety of attendees and members; and  

WHEREAS, the Cal-OSHA adopted emergency regulations (Section 3205) imposing 
requirements on California employers, including measures to promote social distancing remain in 
effect; and 

WHEREAS, the health orders issued by the Contra Costa County Health Officer to preserve the 
public health, including requiring all people in Contra Costa County who aren’t fully vaccinated, to 
adhere to indoor masking requirements, recommending measures for social distancing from non-

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2022-07 

1



2022-07 

Agenda Item: C-3 

household members for vaccinated individuals that have been exposed to COVID-19, and 
measures acknowledging that close contact to other persons increases the risk of transmission, 
remain in effect.   

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
this Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. AB 361 Compliance. The Board of Directors began using teleconferencing in 
accordance with subdivision (e) of Section 54953 of the Government Code, as amended by AB 
361, on October 20, 2021, and have made the requisite findings by majority vote not later than 30 
days after October 20, 2021, and every 30 days thereafter.   

Section 3. State of Emergency. The Board of Directors hereby reconsiders the circumstances of 
the current State of Emergency proclaimed by the Governor on March 4, 2020, and find that the 
ongoing conditions of the State of Emergency directly impact the ability of members to meet safely 
in person. 

Section 4. Measures to Promote Social Distancing. The Board of Directors hereby finds that Cal-
OSHA and the County Health Official continue to recommend measures to promote physical 
distancing. 

Section 5. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager of the Town of Discovery 
Bay Community Services District is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary 
to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public 
meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions 
of the Brown Act. 

Section 6. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
adoption. 

_________________________ 
Kevin Graves 
Board President 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District at a meeting, held on March 16, 2022, by 
the following vote of the Board: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

________________________________ 
Dina Breitstein 
Board Secretary 

2



Agenda Item: E‐1

1

Presented March 2022

Water and Wastewater Monthly Report 
Town of Discovery Bay

1

Weekly Safety Topics:

2/2 – Flammable & Combustible Liquids 

2/9 – Employee Worksite & Facility Inspections 

2/16 – Cranes, Hoists & Slings

2/23 – Lockout Tagout Review Pertaining to Ongoing Construction

VNA University:

Lockout Tagout – OSHA Annual

Put a Lock on Hazardous Energy

Safe Workdays: 4,567

Safety & 
Training

2

1

2

3



Agenda Item: E‐1

2

Active

01
Active

02
Active

06

Active

04
Active 
(Emergency)

05
Active

07

Water Well
Status

Willow WTP

Newport WTP

3

21.50

Production (MG)

1,022

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

Water Production 
& Chemicals 

Willow WTP

Newport WTP 30.60

Production (MG)

1,530

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

TOTAL 52.10

Production (MG)

2,552

Chemicals (gal)
(Sodium Hypochlorite)

4

3

4

4



Agenda Item: E‐1

3

Water Production ‐Willow
Total Monthly Production

5

Water Production ‐ Newport
Total Monthly Production

6

5

6

5



Agenda Item: E‐1

4

Coliform Samples Collected: 20

Water 
Compliance

Coliform Positive Results: 0

Water Quality Complaints: 0

Hydrant Flushing: 0

Valve Exercising: 0

7

Active

C
Active

D
Active

E

Lift Station
Status

Active

A
Active

F

Active

H
Active

J
Active

R
Active

G
Active

S

Active

Lakeshore

Active

Lakes

Active

Lakes 4

Active

Newport

Active

Bixler

8

7

8

6



Agenda Item: E‐1

5

0

Total Flow (MG)

0

Polymer (gal)

Wastewater Flow 
& Chemicals 

WW Plant 1

WW Plant 2

0

Influent Flow avg. (MG)

0

Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

30.53

Total Flow (MG)

1.29 1.09

0

Alum (gal)

Influent Flow avg. (MG) Discharge Flow avg. (MG)

31.46

Last Year Flow (MG)

9

WWTP 2 
Total Monthly Flow

10

9

10

7



Agenda Item: E‐1

6

WWTP 2 
Average Discharge Flow

11

WWTP 2 
Monthly Conductivity 

12

11

12

8



Agenda Item: E‐1

7

Effluent BOD5, mg/L < 10: 1.8

Wastewater
Compliance

Effluent TSS, mg/L < 10: 1.0

Total Coliform 7‐day median < 23: ND

Total Coliform daily max < 240: ND

Eff NTU daily avg < 2: 1

Eff Ammonia (N), mg/L < 8.4: ND

Removal BOD5, monthly > 85%: 99.5%

Removal TTS, monthly > 85%: 99.5%

Conductivity annual avg. < 2,400: 2,360

13

SSOs: 0

Maintenance
& Improvements 

Customer Inquires: 2

Saint Andrews, South Point  

14

13

14

9



 
 

 

 

Town of Discovery Bay  
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 16, 2022 

 
Prepared By: Michael R. Davies, Interim Assist. General Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager 
  
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action to Recommend to Caltrans Traffic Control Change(s) to the Intersection of Highway #4 and 
Discovery Bay Blvd.   
 
 
Recommended Action 
 
Provide recommendation(s), if any, to Caltrans regarding possible traffic control change(s) at the intersection of Highway 
#4 and Discovery Bay Blvd. 
 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On February 3, 2021, the Board received public comment asking that a letter be sent to Caltrans requesting a “re-look” at 
the Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd. intersection (“Intersection”).  The person giving public comment was told to contact 
the General Manager to start the process. 
 
On February 17, 2021, the Board approved a letter asking Caltrans to take a second look at the Intersection and to consider 
safer, more effective, and more appealing engineering design solutions.  Caltrans acknowledged receipt of the letter and 
stated they would put a team together and organize a meeting.  Reminders to Caltrans had to be made several times and 
on November 22, 2021, staff participated in a video meeting with Caltrans to discuss options for possible Intersection 
improvements.  
 
On December 6, 2021, Caltrans provided a proposed striping plan (attached) that would eliminate the Intersection’s current 
delineators and striping.  It was proposed that the W/B Highway #4 right-turn-only lane, east of the Intersection, be changed 
to allow thru traffic and right turns.  This means that traffic coming W/B from Stockton would have two lanes of travel that 
can proceed through the Intersection.  No other changes were proposed.  S/B Discovery Bay Blvd. traffic could still turn 
right (W/B) on a red light at the Intersection.   
 
On December 15, 2021, the Board reviewed the proposed Caltrans striping plan and directed staff, by Board vote, to 
request Caltrans come up with other alternatives for the Intersection. 
 
Staff contacted Caltrans and asked for Intersection alternatives.  Caltrans staff proposed, as an alternative, to keep the 
originally proposed plan, but add a change to the #1 S/B Discovery Bay Blvd traffic lane. Caltrans proposes turning the 
#1 S/B Discovery Bay Blvd traffic lane into a left-turn or right-turn-only lane on a green light.  The #1 S/B lane is currently 
left-turn-only.  The #2 S/B Discovery Bay Blvd traffic lane would remain a right-turn-only lane that allows a right on a 
green or red light.  The Intersection’s signal lights would be optimized (timed) for optimum traffic flow. 
 
Caltrans Office Chief, Nicholas Singh, attended the January 19, 2022, regular Board Meeting and discussed possible 
intersection changes with the Board.   The Board had several questions of Office Chief Singh, which he could not 
immediately answer.  Office Chief Singh stated he would take back the questions to his team and provide the answers 
later.   
 
Staff received the attached email from Office Chief Singh on January 25, 2022.  The email provides written answers to 
Board questions from the January 19, 2022 meeting.   
 
Staff is bringing this matter before the Board for further consideration and to ascertain if the Board desires to make a 
recommendation to Caltrans regarding traffic control changes to the Intersection.  Office Chief Singh was invited to attend 

10



 
 

this Board Meeting with an Engineer.  As of the writing of this staff report, Office Chief Singh has not responded. 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
February 17, 2021 – Board Vote Approving a Letter to Caltrans Requesting a Second Look at the Intersection 
December 15, 2021- Board Vote Requesting Caltrans Present Additional Ideas for the Intersection 
January 19, 2022 – Board Request for Additional Information from Caltrans Concerning the Intersection 
 
 
Attachments 
  
Original Proposed Striping Plan for the Intersection of Hwy #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd – Presented at 12/15/21 Board 
Meeting. 
 
Email from Caltrans Office Chief Nicholas Singh dated 01/25/22 

 

AGENDA ITEM: F-1 

11



 
 

                                                                                                           
Agenda Item: F-1  Caltrans Striping Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CC-4-PM 46.46 intersection with Discovery Bay Blvd. 

Proposed Improvements: 
1. Remove all painted islands and channelizers/delineator in the intersection area 
2. Remove existing Detail 37B and 38 striping, 4 Type III (R) arrows, “RIGHT TURN ONLY” 

pavement markings on #2 lane of WB Route 4, install Detail 12 lane line and two Type II 
(R), and install shoulder striping Detail 27B and 39A as shown  

3. Remove existing W74 (CA) “Thru Traffic Merge Left” and R3-7 “Right Lane Must Turn 
Right 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



1

Mike Davies

Subject: Town of Discovery Bay Board of Director Questions Regarding Change(s) to the 
Intersection of Highway #4 and Discovery Bay Blvd

From: Singh, Nicolas 
Sent: Tuesday, January 25, 2022 10:29 AM 
To: Mike Davies  
Subject: FW: Town of Discovery Bay Board of Director Questions Regarding Change(s) to the Intersection of Highway #4 
and Discovery Bay Blvd 
 
Please see our response to the Board in red 
 

1. Director Bryon Gutow question: Has Caltrans looked at solely removing the yellow delineators as one possible 
solution without any change to the traffic flow? Must all yellow delineators be removed, or could there be a 
partial removal [to reduce confusion]? 
 
The yellow reflectors were installed based on the previous complaint about the WB traffic on the right-turn-lane 
went straight thru the intersection.  We could review the placement of the channelizers and make adjustment if 
needed. 

 
2. Vice-President Ashley Porter question: Is there a way to increase the right-hand green arrow during heavy 

commute times? Peak times noted as Monday – Friday 5:30 – 8:30 A.M.  
 

We asked Signal Operation on 3/8/2021 to review signal timing and signal display of this intersection, if we 
convert the Discovery Bay Blvd SB approach to 2 right-turn lanes? 
After the completion of their study, they told us that our proposal will work with the existing hardware. We just 
have to make sure that the SB right turn detector loop is in good condition.  No additional hardware is needed as 
we already have the 5 section overlap signal heads. 
 

 
3. President Kevin Graves question: When is the last time a traffic study was done on this Intersection? 

 
Traffic Signal Operation did a Traffic Counting on this intersection around March 2021.  
We also had a general corridor study from PM R30.13 to 48.39 in 2017, this intersection was included for the Bike 

lane addition at this part of the corridor. 
 

 
4. President Kevin Graves question: Was there a traffic study done on the Interaction at that time to determine the 

need for changes to the Intersection? 
 
The proposed striping plan was suggested/requested by the Town of Discovery Bay’s General Manager, Mike 
Davies to remove the channelizers to eliminate the confusion for the EB left-turn traffic and improve aesthetics of 
the intersection 

 
5. President Kevin Graves voiced concern over making a major change to traffic for the entrance/exit of Discovery 

Bay without doing a traffic study to analyze what the impact is going to be on the 4,000 (or so) residents of 
Discovery Bay; Would Caltrans do that without doing a complete traffic study on the Intersection? 

 

12



2

We consulted our Signal Operations unit about the striping changes, and we were told that the striping would 
work with the exiting signal hardware 

 
6. President Kevin Graves voiced further concern that Caltrans is potentially creating a bottleneck by going from 

1,200 ft plus the Intersection to four (4) lanes, then back to two (2) - 600 ft right-hand turn lane currently exists 
coming from the East W/B. Then E/B on Discovery Bay Blvd there is another 600 ft merge lane. Whenever you 
reduce lanes, the resulting in increased traffic especially during peak traffic times, correct? 

 
Highway 4 is congested during commute hours, the proposed striping plans is not intended to improve the 
operational of Highway 4.  It’s only intended to eliminate the confusion- for the EB left-turn and improve the 
aesthetics of the intersection 
 

7. President Kevin Graves again requested a traffic study be done prior to any changes being implemented that 
could potentially cause an increase in commute traffic. Another concern is landscaping – with the proposed 
changes landscaping crew will be working within feet of the distance of vehicles traveling an average of 55 MPH 
on Highway #4. Is this being considered a safety issue? 

 
The proposed striping plan is within the existing travel way.  The shoulder width remains the same throughout the 
segment 

 
 
 
Thank you, 
Nicolas Singh 

13



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 16, 2022 

 
Prepared By:   Julie Carter, Finance Manager 
Submitted By: Dina Breitstein, General Manager   
 
Agenda Title   
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Town of Discovery Bay Financial Audit for Fiscal Year Ending 2021. 
  
Recommended Action  
 
Approval of the Fiscal Year 2021 Audited Financial Statements.    
  
Executive Summary 
 
Government Code 53891. (a) States that the officer of each local agency who has charge of the financial records shall 
furnish to the Controller a report of all the financial transactions of the local agency during the preceding fiscal year. The 
report shall contain underlying data from audited financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles if this data is available. The report shall be furnished within seven months after the close of each 
fiscal year and shall be in the form required by the Controller. A local agency shall submit to the Controller information 
on annual compensation, as described in subdivision (l) of Section 53892, for the previous calendar year no later than 
April 30th. The Town of Discovery Bay, CSD, and the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority complies with this 
requirement on an annual basis and hires an independent auditing firm to perform the annual financial audit. 
 
On July 7, 2021 the Board of Directors approved contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti and Vander Veen, Inc. to perform 
the Annual Audit for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 for the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District and the 
Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, and provide under the direction of Marc Croce, the following for Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2021: 
 

• Annual Audit for the Town of Discovery Bay, Community Services District. 
• Preparation and submission of the Town of Discovery Bay, CSD Financial Transaction Reports. 
• Preparation and submission of the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority Financial Transaction Reports. 

 
Croce, Sanguinetti and Vander Veen prepared and submitted the Financial Transactions Records on January 31, 2022 
as required for both the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District and the Discovery Bay Public Financing 
Authority. 
 
Croce, Sanguinetti and Vander Veen conducted the Annual Audit for FY21 in December 2021 and have subsequently 
prepared Audited Financial Statements for review by the Board. 
 
Staff has reviewed the financial statements and recommends the acceptance and approval by the Board of Directors.  
  
Fiscal Impact: 

Amount Requested  
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available? (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund # Category:         
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item: 
 
July 7, 2021 - Approved Contracting with Croce, Sanguinetti & Vander Veen to Perform Audit for Fiscal Year 2020-21.  
  
 

15



 
 

Attachments 
 
Town of Discovery Bay CSD Financial Statements and Independent Auditors Report June 30, 2021 
Draft Letter from Independent Auditors 
Draft Representation Management Letter 
 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM: F-2 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 16, 2022 
 

 
Prepared By:      Monica Gallo, Recreation Programs Supervisor 
Submitted By:    Dina Breitstein, General Manager  
  
Agenda Title 
 
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding the Community Center Recreational Swim Price Increase.   
  
Recommended Action 
 
Approve Recreational Swim Pricing Increase 
  
Executive Summary 
 
The Community Center opened its first recreational swim season in 2014 with minimal fees for residents to enjoy the 
Community Center pool and in 8 years have never increased our pricing.  
 
Previous Years: 

• General Admission (swimmer): $3.00 
• General Admission (non-swimmer): $2.00 
• Children under 2: Free 

Season Pass: 
• Individual: $35.00 
• Family of 4: $125 – extra family member $24 each person 
• 10 Entry punch pass: $20.00 

Suggested Change: 
• General Admission (swimmer): $5.00 
• General Admission (non-swimmer): $3.00 
• Children under 2: Free 

Season Pass: 
• Individual: $45.00 
• Family of 4: $160.00 – extra family member $38 each person 
• 10 Entry punch pass: $35.00 

It is the recommendation of staff that the fees for recreational swim increase as stated above. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
  
Attachments 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM:  F-3 

80



 
 
 

 

Town of Discovery Bay 
“A Community Services District” 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date 
 
 

March 16, 2022 

 

Prepared By:     Mike Yeraka, Projects Manager 
Submitted By:   Dina Breitstein, General Manager 

Agenda Title   
 
Discussion and Possible Action to Award the Discovery Bay Blvd. and Egdeview Drive Pipeline Replacement Project to 
the Lowest Responsive Bidder in the Amount of $640,000. 
  
Recommended Action 
 
It is recommended that the Board take the following Action: 
 

a. Award the Egdeview Drive Pipeline Replacement Project to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc. to Perform the 
Necessary Construction Services per the project bidding documents and the issued addendum. 
 

b. Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Town’s Construction Contract Agreement with W. R. Forde 
Associates, Inc. to perform the Work contained in the Bidding Documents and any Addendum in the amount Not 
to Exceed $640,000. 

 
c. Authorize the General Manager to execute change orders to the construction contract for up to 10% of the 

contract value. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
The two waterline replacement projects summarized below were combined into one project and the Town recently went 
out to bid for the projects. 
 
(CIP #6013) 6” pipeline on Discovery Bay Blvd serving the Lakeview Busines Plaza – Budget $290,0000 

A 6” pipeline on Discovery Bay Blvd supplies water to the Lakeview Busines Plaza for commercial service connections, 
fire hydrants, and irrigation services including the landscape at the Highway 4 entrance to Discovery Bay. The 6” 
pipeline is approximately 400 feet long and it dead-ends at the entrance to the business plaza. The pipeline is being 
replaced in response to several breaks that have occurred in recent years, which have indicated the pipeline is in poor 
condition and could cause water service interruptions to the commercial properties in the future. The replacement 
pipeline would be installed in a new location to maintain water service during the installation. All existing services on the 
existing 6” watermain will be identified and connected to the replacement pipeline.  

(CIP #6015) 8” pipeline on Edgeview Drive between St. Andrews and Clubhouse Drive – Budget $300,000 

The 8” pipeline on Edgeview Drive between St. Andrews Drive and Clubhouse Drive is located beneath residential 
driveways along the south side of the road. This section of the pipeline is approximately 1,100 feet long and has 
approximately 34 residential connections in total. Being located beneath the private driveways has resulted in the 
District replacing private driveways to address water leaks and it poses a risk of private property damage.  

“Continued on next page” 
 

81



 
 

 

The replacement pipeline would be installed in the roadway within the District’s easement. All residences would be 
reconnected to the new pipeline, either by extending existing services or installing new services laterals as needed.  

Five bids ranging from $654,000 to $1,029,000 were received for the project with the lowest responsive bid coming from 
W. R. Forde Associates, Inc. The $590,000 in funding for the projects was established in Fiscal Year 19/20 and since 
that time we have seen an enormous increase in pricing due to COVID and supply chain issues.  The total project cost 
with $121,000 to Luhdorff & Scalmanini for design and inspection and 10% contingencies brings the total project cost to 
$840,000 which is $250,000 above the $590,000 budget. 

An additional $250,000 in funding is available in the Water Infrastructure Replacement Fund in order to make up the 
difference. 

Specific Board Action:  
 
It is recommended that the Board take the following Action: 
 

a. Award the Egdeview Drive Pipeline Replacement Project to W. R. Forde Associates, Inc. to Perform the 
Necessary Construction Services per the project bidding documents and the issued addendum. 
 

b. Authorize the General Manager to Execute the Town’s Construction Contract Agreement with W. R. Forde 
Associates, Inc. to perform the Work contained in the Bidding Documents and any Addendum in the amount Not 
to Exceed $640,000. 

 
c. Authorize the General Manager to execute change orders to the construction contract for up to 10% of the 

contract value. 
 
Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 
 
The Board approved a total of $590,000 through FY 20/21 for the Pipeline Projects during approval of the FY 19/20 Budget 
at the June 19, 2019, Board Meeting. 
 
The Board previously approved design of the improvements at the August 19, 2020, Board Meeting. 

 
Fiscal Impact: Included in the $590,000 budget with $250,000 coming from the Water Infrastructure Replacement Fund 
Amount Requested:  $720,000 ($654,000 for bid plus 10%) 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available? Yes 
Prog/Fund #   Category:  TBD 
 

Attachment 
 

1. Bid Results of Top Three Bidders. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM: F-4 

82



Bid Item Description Qty/Unit  Unit Price   Bid Item Total   Unit Price   Bid Item Total   Unit Price   Bid Item Total   Unit Price   Bid Item Total 

1 Mobilization Lump Sum ‐$                    25,000$             ‐$                     30,000$                    ‐$                     33,246$               ‐$                     70,000$              

2 Project Records and Submittals Lump Sum ‐$                    5,000$               ‐$                     10,000$                    ‐$                     6,942$                  ‐$                     15,000$              

3 Site Health and Safety Plan Lump Sum ‐$                    5,000$               ‐$                     6,000$                      ‐$                     11,565$               ‐$                     10,000$              

4 Preservation and Cleanup Lump Sum ‐$                    5,000$               ‐$                     10,000$                    ‐$                     7,278$                  ‐$                     15,000$              

5 Project Closeout Lump Sum ‐$                    3,000$               ‐$                     5,000$                      ‐$                     4,887$                  ‐$                     5,000$                 

6 Paving Lump Sum ‐$                    51,600$             ‐$                     55,000$                    ‐$                     68,456$               ‐$                     65,000$              

7 Concrete Lump Sum ‐$                    10,000$             ‐$                     30,000$                    ‐$                     9,375$                  ‐$                     35,000$              

8 Pipe Lump Sum ‐$                    435,600$           ‐$                     274,000$                  ‐$                     364,974$             ‐$                     200,000$            

9 Valves and Related Appurtenances Lump Sum ‐$                    79,200$             ‐$                     149,000$                  ‐$                     211,736$             ‐$                     225,000$            

10 Disinfection of Piping Lump Sum ‐$                    10,000$             ‐$                     25,000$                    ‐$                     13,322$               ‐$                     15,000$              

11 Performance Testing and Facility Startup Lump Sum ‐$                    10,000$             ‐$                     10,000$                    ‐$                     14,679$               ‐$                     25,000$              

12 Shoring Lump Sum ‐$                    ‐$                     25,000$                    ‐$                     10,209$               ‐$                     10,000$              

13 All Other Items to Complete Project Lump Sum ‐$                    ‐$                     25,000$                    ‐$                     18,832$               ‐$                     46,870$              

640,000$           654,000$                  775,501$             736,870$            Total

Town of Discovery Bay 
Discovery Bay Blvd and Edgeview Drive Pipeline Replacement

Bid Results
Tuesday March 8, 2022

W.R. Forde Associates, Inc Suulutaaq, Inc. Soracco, Inc.Engineer's Estimate

83



84



85


	030222 Regular BOD Minutes_approved.pdf
	OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY
	TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

	Binder1.pdf
	1 - C-3-1 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices.pdf
	RFA 031622.pdf
	03-16-22 BOD Meeting Agenda Packet_final.pdf
	1.  Agenda Regular BOD Meeting 03162022.pdf
	C3 TODB AB 361 Continuing Resolution - Updated for Masking Lift(1590379.3).pdf
	E1  VEOLIA 03-2022 TODB Presentation (2).pdf
	F1 Staff Report- Caltrans Intersection Plan 031622.pdf
	F1.1 Singh Email Reply RE BOD Questions 012522.pdf
	F1.2 DB Proposed Striping Plan Updated.pdf
	F2  2022-03-16 Staff Report Croce Sanguinetti and Vander Veen Financial Audit FY21.pdf
	F2.pdf
	F3  Pool Fee Increase_3-16-2022.pdf
	F4 Pipeline Projects - Staff Report 3.16.2022 Board Meeting.pdf
	Agenda Title  

	F4.1 220309 Edgeview_BidResults.pdf
	J1 Graham -BUSD 2022-02-25_.pdf





